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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of
M/s.ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Mis.ALPHAGREP SECURITIES
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act") with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements is free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in
the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial centrol relevant to the
Company's preparation of the Ind AS finansial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind
AS, of the financial position of the Company as at 31 March, 2017, and its financial performance including
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A* a slatement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Qrder.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder,

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2017 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2017 from being
Y appainted as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
) and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B".

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

) according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial pasition.
) ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
) there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

) Protection Fund by the Company.,

iv.  The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the financial statements as to holdings as
well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th
December, 2016. Based on audit procedures and relying on the management representation we
report that the disclosures are in accordance with books of account maintained by the Company
and as produced to us by the Management — Refer Note.No.36 to Ind AS financial statement.

Ry

Place: Bangalore

Membership No.216133
Date : 10 May 2017 Partner
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the Company on the Ind
As standalone financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2017, we report that.

vi.

vii.

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including gquantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b} According to the information and explanation given to us, the fixed assets have been physically
verified by the management in a phased and periodical manner. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. As explained to us, no discrepancies are noted on such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the company does not hold any immovable property. Thus,
paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a service oriented company. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories.
Thus, paragraph 3(ii} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, company has not granted loans to any party covered in the register to be
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013("the Act’).

In our opinion and according to lhe information and explanations given to us, the company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, to the extent applicable, with respect
1o loans and investments made. The company has not provided security or guarantee for loan taken
by others.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of
the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of acgount in respect of
undisputed statutory dues inciuding provident fund, income tax, service tax and other material
statutory dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorilies.

As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of employee's state
insurance, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs and duty of excise.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, income tax, service tax and other material statutory dues were in
arrears as at 31 March 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

b} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of
provident fund, income tax and service tax dues which have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.
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Place: Bangalore
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The Company has not borrowed any credit facility from bank, financial institution or government, The
Company has not issued any debenture during the year.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, managerial remuneration paid/provided for, are in compliance with the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the infarmation and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
nidhi company. Thus, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company:

a) All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013,

b) Details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards in the financial statements.

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
converlible debentures during the year under review. However during the year under review the
company has allotted equity shares to the existing shareholders.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Thus, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934.

Date : 10 May 2017 Partner
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Annexure B 1o the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act 2013 (the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Alphagrep Securities Private
Limited ("the Company”) as of 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Respansibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, lhe accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

' Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™ and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
astablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in ali material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
! financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reparting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal contro! based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the nd

As financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls system over financial reporting.
.6
)
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reparting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is @ process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial contro! over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting fo future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qpinion

In our opinion, based on the test checks conducted by us, the Company has, in all materal respects,
reasonably adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were prima facie operating effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For SUNDARESHA & ASSOCIATES,
haptered Accountants

BFPA CHANDRA C)
ership No.216133
Date : 10 May 2017 Partner

Place: Bangalore
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ALPHAGREF SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN ; U601 0KA2002PTC029982
Ground Floor, Frontline Grandeur, No.l4, Wallon Road, Bangalore -560 001
Balance sheet as al 31 March 2017
Amounl in Rs Lakhs

As at Asal As at
Note 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

ASSETS
Nonr-current asscls
Property, plant and equipment 4 47% 309 209
Other intangible assets 5 5 7 12
Financial Asscls
-Investments 6 1,612 - -
-Loans 7 163 13 -

- Cther non-current financial asscis 8 - 495 -
Quher non-currenl assets 9 1 - -
Total non-current assets 2,260 824 221

Current assels
Financial asscls
- Invesimenls 10 1 1,108 52
- Cash and cash cquivalents 1k 842 16 24
- Bank Balances ather than above 12 500 5 -
- Loans 13 2211 2,200 -
- Other current financial asscls 14 388 1,030 1,434
QOther current asscls 15 22 36 6
Total current assels 3,964 4,395 1,516
Totnl asscts 6,224 5,219 1,737
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 16 145 125 125
Other equity 17 4,726 3,254 929
Total equity 4,871 3379 1,054
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 18 36 24 30
Delerred lax liabilities (net) 19 82 56 34
Total non-current liabilities 118 30 64
Currenl linbililies
Financial liabilitics
- Borrowings 20 14 192 |
- Other finaneial liabilitics 21 1,123 1,261 379
Other current liabilities 22 4 16 19
Provisions 23 1 1 1
Currenl lax liabilities (net) 24 23 270 219
Total current linbilities ) 1,235 1,760 619
‘Total cquity and liabilities 6224 5,219 1,737
Significant accounting policies and other notes l1wd7?

The noles referred Lo above [orm an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even dale attached

For and on behali of the Board of Directors of
ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE L D

WAoot . .

MOHIT MUTREJA B ATH
Managing Director Direcror
Mcmbership No.216[33 DIN: 02664018 DIN: 01901681
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Date: 10 May 2017 Date: 10 May 2017
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ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of profit and Toss for the year ended 31 March 2017

Amount in Rs Lakhs

Particulars For the yearended  For the year ended
Note 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Income
Revenue [rom cperations 25 14,127 14,778
Other income 26 388 134
Total income 14,515 [4,912
Expenses
STT, CTT end Stock exchanges Expenses 27 9,302 8,334
Employce berefits expense 28 3,396 2,730
Finance costs 29 78 4
Depreciation and amortization cxpense 30 80 69
Other expenses 31 409 222
Total expenses 13,265 11,360
Profit{{loss) before fax 1,250 3,552
Tax expense:
- Current tax 32 353 1,223
- Deferred rax 32 27 16
Profit/{loss) for the year 830 2,313
(Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of defined benefit plan 3 19
(3) 19
Income 1ax relating to items that will not be reclassificd to profit or loss {D) 7
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year (2) 12
Total Comprchensive Income for the year 828 2,325
Earnings per equity share of Rs.10/- each 37
- Basic 66.38 185.03
- Diluted 66.38 185.03
Signilicant accounling policies and olher notes 11047

The notes referred 10 above form an integral pan of the financizal slalements

As per our report of cven dale anached
For SUNDARESHA & ASSQOCIATES

Jfor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Place: Bangalore
Date; 10 May 2017

MOHIT MUTREJA B é éRINATH

Madr
Director

DN: 01901681

Managing Direcror
DIN: 02666018

Place: Bangalare
Date: 10 May 2017
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ALPHAGREF SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of cash Rows for (he year ended 31 March 2017

Cash Nows from operating activilies
Profit/( Loss) for the period
Adjustments;

- [nterest income (including fair value change in financial
instrumenis)

- Dividend income

- Interest expense (including fair value change in financial
inslruments)

- Deprecialion and amortization

Changes in

- Current and non-current asseis

- Current and non-current liabilitics
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

Cash generated (rom / {nsed in) operations

Cash Mows from investing activilies
Purchasc of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of [inancial instruments

Loans given

Inlerest received

Dividends received

Nel cash generated from/{used in) investing activities
Cash fTows from financing activities
Proceceds from issuc of share capital

Proceeds from/ {repayment of} long term and short 1erm borrowings
Interest paid

Net cash used in inancing aclivitics

Incrense in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents al (he end of the year
Components of cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:

- in curment accounis

Cash on hond
Less: Bank overdraft

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes referred 10 pbove farm an intcgral part of the financial statements

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Amonnt in Rs Lakhs
For the year ended
31 March 2016

1,250 3,552
(315) (122)
(73) (12)

78 4

80 69

1,020 3491
1,520 (608)
91) 917
2,449 3,800
(640) (1,172
1,809 2,628
(249) (165)
(1,612} (500}

(3) (2,200)
399 k13

73 12

(1,392) (2.818)
664 -

14 m
(17 )]
401 (10)

1,018 (200)
(176) pL

842 (176)
836 3
6 13

- (192)

842 (176)

As per our report of even daie attached
DARESHA & ASSOCIATES

ip No.216133

Place. Bangalore
Date; 10 May 2017

Place: Bangolore
Date: 10 May 2017

for and on behalf of the Board of Direclers of
ounlanis ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

- MaLJ-

MOHIT MUTREJA
Managing Direcror
DIN; 02666018

D:rcr.'far
DIN: 31901681



ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Sstatement of changes in equity for the year coded 31 March 2017

a Equiry share capital
Amount in Rs Lakhs

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Egquity shares of Re 1 each issited, subscribed and fully paid up

Balance al the beginning of 1he reperling year 125 125
Equity share issucd during the year 20 -
145 125

Balance at the end of the reporting year

b Other Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2017
Amount in Rs Lakhs

Particolars Reserves and Surplus Other Total Qther
Comprehensive Equiry
[nconte
Securities Retnined Remeasurcments of
Premium Earnings defined benefit plan
Reserve
Balance as at | April 2016 75 3,175 E] 3,254
Reccived on issuc of equity shares 64 - - 644
Profit or (loss) during the year - 830 - 830
Other comprehensive income during (he year - - {2) (2)
Balance as at 31 March 2017 719 4,005 2 4,726
For the year ended 31 March 2016:
Amount in Rs Lakhs
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Qiher Total other equity
Comprehensive
Income
Secorites Retained Remeasurements ol
Premium Earnings defined benelit plan
Reserve
Bolance as at | April 2085 75 862 {8) 929
Profit or (loss) during 1he ycar - 2,313 - 2313
Other comprehensive income during the year - - 12 12
Balance as at 31 March 2016 75 3,175 § 3,254

C L L o
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ALPHAGREF SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes (o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

1

2.01

2.02

Company background

The cntity is a limited liability company incorporated in India under the Companies Act, 1956 on 9th January 2002.The
regisicred offic of the company is situated at No.14, Frontline Grandeur, Ground Fleor, Wallon road, Bangalorc 560 001.
The company is inlo the business of financial service and carying trading in securitics mainly into dealing/trading in all
kinds of financial instrumncts using algo based proprictory sofware,

These linancial slatements are Separate Financial Statements of the company. The company has availed exemption from
preparation of consolidated fianancial stetements, in accordence with parn 4(a) of IND AS 110. M/s. Way2Weallh
Securitics Private Limited, the immediatc parent company, has prepared consolidated financial stalements that comply with
INDASs and which are produced for publi use, M/s.Way2Wealth Securities Private Limited is incorporated in and
conducling busincss in India. The said consolidated financial statements are obtainable a1 the registercd office of the parcnt
company, No.14, Frontline Grandeur, Ground Floor, Wallon road, Bangalore 560001.

List of subsidiarics with perceniage holding —

Principal place of business Percentage | Method used to
Name of the entity (and Country of incorporation, if | of holding account for the
different) {¥s) investment

DIRECT SUBSIDIARIES
Way2Wealth [lluminati Pte Ltd | Singapore [ 100% | Cost
STEPDOWN SUBSIDIARIES
Alphagrep Holding HK Lid. Hongkong 100% NA
Alphagrep UK Ltd. United Kingdom 100% NA
Shanghai Dao GE International Trading ® China 100% NA

= Shanghai Dao GE Intcrnational Trading is incorporated w.e.l' 13 February 2017. However procedure for issue and
subscription of shares is under process and Lhere is no issued share capital in the company as at 31 March 2017.

Significant accounting policics
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparalion of these separate financial
slalements. These policics have besn consistently applicd to all the years presented, unless atherwise stalcd.

Statement of Complirnece
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards {referred to as “Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, read with section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, with efTect from April 1, 2016.

The adoplion was carricd out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First-time Adoplion of Indian Accounting S1andards.
Previous period comparitives in the separate financial statements have been restated to Ind AS, in accordance with Ind AS
101. The Company has presented a reconciliation from the presentalion of financial statcments under Accounting
Standards notificd under the Companics (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (“Previous GAAP") to Ind AS of
Sharchelders’ equity as at March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015 and of the total comprchensive income for the year ended
March 31, 2016.

Basis of preparation

These separatc financial slalements are prepared in accordance wilh Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS}) under the
historical cost convention on accrual basis cxoept for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the
provisions of the Companics Act, 2013(to the cxtent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Acl rcad
with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

Accounling policics have been consisicnlly applied-except where the change is required by an Ind AS or change results in
the financial siaiements providing reliable and more relevant informalion abowt the effects of wransactions, other events or
condilion on the entity's financial position, financial performance ar cash flow.
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ALPHAGREY SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

2.03  Functional and presentation currency
These separale financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency.

2.04  Current versus non-current classification
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet bascd on current/ non-cumrent classification. An assct is
treated as current when it is:
- Expected (0 be realised or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
- Expecied to be realised within twelve months after the reporting peried, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 1o settle a liability for at least twelve months afier
the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be scitled in normal operating cycle,

= It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- It is due to be setiled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditionat right te defer the sertlement of the liability for at leas! twelve manths aficr the reporting period.
All other linbilities are classified as non-current,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their rcalisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

2.05  Property, plant and equipment and intangible assels

a) Property, plant and equipment;
Under the Previous GAAP, property, plant and equipment were carried in Lthe balance sheet at their carrying value being the
cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation,

The cosl of properly, plant and cquipment includes freight, duties, taxes and other incidenlal expenses relating Io the
acquisition and installation of the respective asscls. Borrowing costs direcily attributable to acquisition or canstruction of
those fixed assets which necessarily take e substantial period of lime to get ready for their intended use are capitalized.

The cost of properly, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use, are disclosed as capital work in progress.
Advance paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets outstanding ar each balance sheet are shown under capital advances,

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

In respect of fixed asscts acquired on or afler 01.04.2014 {cfective date of Schedule 11 of Companies Act, 2013),
deprecialion is charged on a straight line method s0 as to write off the depreciable amount of the assels over the useful life
as mentioned in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. In respect of assets acquired prior to 01.04.2014, the carrying
amount as on 01.04,2014 is deprecialed over the remaining useful life. In respect of asscts where the remaining useful lif
of an assel is nil as on 01.04.2014, the same (afer relaining the residual value) is recognised in the opening balance of
relained eamings. Deprecialion for assels purchased / sold during the year is proporionalely charged.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over initial Icase period.

b) Intangible asscts:

Intangible assets acquired separately arc measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible asscls are carricd
al cosl less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impaiment losses,

Amuortisation methods and estimated useful lives

Iniangible assets with finite lives erc amortised over the vseful economic life on a straight- line basis, commencing from the
date is available to the Company for ils use and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangiblc™
essel may be impaired. The Company eslimates the uscful lives for intangible assels as ollows:

Assct calegory Estimated uselul lile
Computer soltware 3. 86peasg
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2.06

2,07

2.08

Impairment of assets

The company assesses @l each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an assel or & group ol assets
comprising a cash-generating unit may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset. For an asset of group of asscts that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the rccoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit 1o which the asset belongs. If such recoverable amount of the assct or the
recoverable amount of the cash-gencrating unil to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the camying
amounl is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduclion is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. If al the balance sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss
no longer exists, the recovcrable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject 10 &
maximum of depreciable historical cost. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent Lhal the carrying amounl of asset
does not exceed the net book value that would have been detenmined; if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the reveauce
can be reliably measured, regardless of when Lhe payment is being made. Revenug is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined tenms of payment net of taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government.

The specilic recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Trading income is recognised when a legally binding contract is executed.

Brokerage income and transaction charges are recognised on the trade date of the transaction upon confimmation of the
transaclion by the exchanges. Brokerage income from mutal funds, Initial Public Offer, fixed deposits of Companies and
Post Office are accounted on accrual basis as per the slalement of accounts received from the respective organizations.
Income from consultancy services is accounted for on the basis of actual progressfechnical assessment of work cxccuted, in
line with the terms of respective consullancy contracls.

Inlerest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective inlerest rte method. The effective interest rate is the
rale that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective inlerest ratc, the company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractua) terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Depository transaction charges arc recognized on completion of respective transaction. Annual maintenance charges for
depository accounts are accounted as and when the services are rendered.

Income from portfolio management [ees are recognised on the basis of agreements entered into with clients and when the
right to receive income is established,

Futures and options trading incomc comprises of profit/ loss on derivative instruments and these are marked to market,

Dividends ere recognised in profit or loss only when the right to receive payment is esiablished, it is probable that Lhe
economic benefits associated with the dividend will (low 1o the company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Leases

As a lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the company, as lessce, has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as Nnance leases. Finance leases are capilalised at the lease's inception at the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, lhc present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each leasc payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profil or loss over the lease period 50 as to produce
a constant periodic rate of intercst on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the'risks and rewards of awnership are not transferred 1o the company as lessee, are
classified as operating lcascs. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-linc basis over the period of the lease unless he paymenis are siructured lo increase in
line wilh expeeted general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cos! increases.
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ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financinl stalements lor the year ended 31 March 2017

2.09 Investments and other financial assets
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a) Classilication

The group classifics its financial assels in the following measuremeni calegories:

- those to be measured subsequently at lair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss),
and

- those measured et amortised cost.

The classification depends on the enlity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will cither be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income,
For investments in debt instrumenis, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For
investmenis in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the group hes made an irrevacable election ai the time of
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

b) Initial recopnition and measurement

The company recogniscs financial assels when il becomes o party lo the corntractual provisions of the instrument. All
finuncial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Trade receivables are measured at their transaclion price,
if the trade receivables do not contain a significant financing component in accordance with Ind AS 1135, Transaclion costs
that are direcily atiributable 1o the acquisition of financial asscts that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to
the fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss arc
expensed in profit or loss. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date.

Tinancial assets with embedded derivalives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash [lows are
solely payment of principal and interest,

¢} Subsequent measurement

Finanvial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial assels is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows and Lhe contractual cash terms of the financial asset give risc on specified dates 1o
cash flows thal are solely paymenis of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from
these financial assets is accounted in profit or loss using the cffeclive interest rale method. Impairment losses, forex gain /
loss and gain / loss on derecognition of financial assct in this catcgory is recognised in profil or loss.

Financial assels at fair value through other camprehensive income (FVTOCH

A financial asset is meastured at FYTOCIL, if it is held withing a business model whose objective is achicved by both from
collection of contractual cash flows and selling the financial asscts, where the asscis’ cesh {lows represent solely paymenis
of principal and interest. Further cquity instruments where the company has made an irrevocable election based on ils
business model, to classify as instruments measured at FYTOCI, are measured subsequently ot fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Debt instruments - Movements in the carrying amoumt are taken through other comprehensive income (OCI), except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised. Intercst income from these financial essels is included in other
income using the cffective interest rate method.

Equity instruments - Movements in the carrying amount are taken to OCl and there is no subsequent relassificaiton of fiar
value gains and losses to profit or luss. Dividend from such-invesiments are recognised in profil or loss.

Financial assets at fair vafue through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial assct which is not classificd in any of the above calegories are subsequently feir valued through profil or loss,
All gains and lossess are recognised in profit or loss,

d) Investments in subsidaries, joint ventures and associates
Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates i }

s t acost in the separale financial statements.
£
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2.10

€) Impairment of financial assets
The company assesscs on a forward looking basis Lhe expected credit losses associaled with its assets carried at amonised
cost and FYTOCI debt instruments.

The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
For trade reccivables, the company applies the simplificd approach specified by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which
requires expected lilctime losses to be recognised [rom inilial recognition of the receivables.

I) Derceognition of financial assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a pari of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) i primarily
derecogniscd (i.c. removed [rom the company's separaie balance sheet) when:

- The righls to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The company has transferred its rights 1o receive cash Aows from the esset or has assumed an obligalion to pay the
reccived cash Mows in full without material delay to a third party under & ‘pass-lthrough® arrangement; and cither {a) the
company has transferred substanlially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neilher transferred nor
relained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assct, bul hes transferred control of the asset,

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an essel or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has reteined the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of Lhe asset, the
company continues 1o recognisc the transferred asset 1o the extent of the company's continuing involvement. In that case,
the company also recognises an associated liebility. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measurcd on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that he company hes reiained.

Financial liabilities

a) Initial recognition end measurement

The company recogniscs financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the coniractual provisions of the instrument. All
financial liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognilion. Transaction costs thal are directly attributable to the
issue of financial liebilities, Lhal are not at fair value through profit or loss, are reduccd from the fair value on initial
recognition. Transaction costs thar are directly atiributable to the issu¢ of financial liabilites at fair value through profil or
loss are expensed in profit or loss,

b) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at [air value through profit or loss

Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss include financiel liabilities held for irading and financial liabililies
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purposc of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
Ind AS 109. Separated cmbedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they arc designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losscs on linbilities held for trading arc recognised in the profil or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognilion al fair value through prefit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilitics designated as FYTPL, fair valuc
gains/ losses atiributable 1o changes in own credit risk ese recognized in OCIL Thesc gains/ loss are not subsequently
transferred to Siatement of Prolil and Loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulalive gain or loss within equity.
All other changes in fair valve of such liability are recognised in the stalement of profit or loss. The company has not
designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Amartised cost

This is the calegory most relevant to the company. After initial recognition, intercst-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured a1 amortised cost using the Effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses arc recognised in
profil or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amoriised cosl is calculaled by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that arc an

_integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisalion is included as finance cosis in the statement of profil and loss.
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2.12

2.13

Financial guaraniee contracis

Financiel guarantes contracls issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specificd debtor [ails 1o make & payment when due in accordance with the terms of 2
debl instrument, Financial puarantee contracls are recognised initially as a liabilily at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of the amount delermined in accordance with Ind AS 37 and the amount initially recognised less cumulalive
amoriisalion, where appropriate.

The fair value of financial guaraniee is determined as the present value of the difference in net cash flows beiween the
contractual paymenis under the debt instrument and the payments that would be required witheut the guarantee or the
amount paid 1o the guarantor for assuming the abligations.

Where guarantees in relation 1o loans to credit facilitics of subsidiaries are provided for no compensation the fair values are
accounted for as contribulions and recognised as part of the cost of investment. Similarly guarantee oblained from holding
company for no compensation the fair values are aceounted for as capital contribution.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liabilily is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is repleced by another from the same lender on subslantially different terms, or the terms of an
cxisling liability arc substentially modified, such an exchange or modification is trented as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in Lhe respective camying amounls js recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derivatives
Derivatives are initially recogniscd at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured to their fair value a1 the end of each reporting period.

Offselting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offsel and the net amount is reporied in Lhe balance shesl where there is a legally
enforceable right 10 offsct the recognised amounts and there is an infention 1o setile on a net basis or realise the asset and
seltle the liability simultaneously. The lcgally enforceable right must not be contingent on futurc events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the group or the

counierparty.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, nel of Lransaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redcmption amount is recognised
in profit or loss gver the period of the borrowings using the cffective interest method. Fees paid on the eslablishment of
loan facililies are recognised as transaction costs of the loan 1o the exlent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the lee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over Lhe period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrgwings are removed [rom the balance sheet when the obligalion specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transfered to
another party and lhe consideration paid, including eny non-cash assets transferred or liabilitics assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss.

Where the terms of a financial liabilily are renegolialed and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor o exlinguish
all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or doss is recopnised in profit or loss, which is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current linbilities unless the company has an unconditional right to defer scttlement of the
liability for at [cast 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-ierm loan
arrangement on or before the end of Lthe reporting period wilh the cffcet that the liability becomes payable on demand on the
reporling date, the entity does not clessify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, afier the reporling period and before
the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.
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2.14

.15

2.16

Borrowing casts

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of 2
qualifying assel are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asse! for its inlended
use or sale, Qualifying assels are assels thal neccssarily take a substantial peried of time 1o get ready for their intended use
or sale.

Investment income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borroswing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing cosis are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefils

a) Short-term benefit plans

Liabilities for wages end salaries, including non-monetary benefits thal ere expecied 1o be scitled wholly within 12 months
afier the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised and measured et the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilitics are scttled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in
the balance sheel.

b) Defined contribution plan

The company pays providenl fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The
company hes no furiher payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as
defined conwribution plans and the contributions are recogniscd as cmployee benefil expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions, if any, arc recognised as an asset 1o the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available,

c) Defined bencfit plans

The Company's gratuity plan is & defined benefit plan. The present value of gratuity obligation under such defined benefit
plans is determined based on actuarial valuations carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit
Melhad, which recopnises each period of service as giving rise 1o additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and
measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present valuc of estimated
future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benelit plans, is
based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity periods approximating lo
the terms of rclnted obligations. Acluarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit 1o retained eamnings through QCI in the period in which they occur.

d) Othcr long-term beneflit plans
As a policy, company encourage the employces to avail the leave before the end of accounting year. in such scenario,
management is of the opinion no provision needs (o be made for eaned leave,

Foreign currency transactions

a} Functional and presentation currency

Ttems included in the financial slatements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (*the functional currency'). These inancial statements arc presenied in Indian rupee (INR}, which is
company’s functional and presentation currency.
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2.15

b) Transactions and balances

Foreipn currency transactions are ranslated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losscs resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the (ranslation
of monetery assets and liabilities denominaled in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates arc gencrally recognised in
profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate 1o qualifying cesh flow hedges and qualifying nel investment hedges
or are atribulable 1o part of the net invesiment in a foreign operation. A monelary item for which settlement is neither
planned ner likely o occur in the foresecable fulure is considered as a part of the entity's net investment in that forcign
aperation.

Foreign exchanpe differences regarded as an adjustment 1o borrowing costs arc presented in (he slatement of profit and loss,
within finance costs. All other fareign exchange gains and losses are presenied in the stalement of prafit and loss on a net
basis.

Non-monelary ilems that are measurcd at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchenge rates at the date
when the fair value was determined. Translation difTerences on assets and liabilitics carried at fair value are reporied as part
of the fair value gain or loss.

Income Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabililies are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid o the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
rcporting date in the countries where the company operaies and penerates laxable income.

Current income tax relating to itcms recognised oulside profit or loss is recopnised outside profit or loss (either in ofher
comprehensive income or in equity). Current lax ilems are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equily. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in (he tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and cstablishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum alternate lex ("MAT') paid in a year is charged to the sialement of profit and loss as current lax. The company
recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that therc is convincing evidence that the Company will pay
normal income tex during Lhe specificd period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed lo be carried forwvard. In
the year in which the company recognises MAT credit as an asset in eccordance with the Guidance Notc on Accounting for
Credil Available in respect of Minimum Allemative Tax under the Income tax Act, 1961, the said assct is created by way
of credit to the statement of profit and loss ang shown as ‘MAT Credit Entitlement”. The company reviews the ‘MAT
credit cntitlement’ esset at each reporting date end wriles down the asset to the extent the company does nol have
convincing evidence that it will pay normal lax during the specified period.

Deferred tax
Deferred tex is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax hascs of assets and liabilitics
and their carrying amounts for inancial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deflerred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or en asset or liability in a ransaction that is
not a business combination end, at the lime of lhe transaction, affects neither the aceounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss;

- in respeet of taxable temporary differcnces associated with invesiments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax asscts are recopnised for all deduclible temporary difTerences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assels are recognised to the extent that if is probable that taxable profit will be avaitable
against which the deductible lemporary differences, and the carry farward'of unused tax credits and unused lax losses can
be urilised, cxcept:
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- when the deferred tax assel relaling 1o the deductible temporary diffcrence arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combinalion and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor 1axable profit or loss;

- in respect of deductible temporary difTerences associated with invesiments in subsidiarics, asscciates and interesls in joint
ventures, deferred tax asscts arc recognised only Lo the extent that it is probable Lhat the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferrcd tax assets is reviewed at each veporling date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow ell or part of the defered tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax essets are re-assessed al each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset 1o be recovered.

Deferred tax essets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expecled to apply in the year when the assel is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) thal have been enacled or subslantively enacted ai the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profil or loss is recopniscd oulside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income o in equity). Delerred tax items are recognised in correlation 1o the underlying transaction either in

OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assels and deferred tax liebilitics arc offsel if a Iegally enforceable right exisls (o set off currenl tax assets
against curreni tax liabilities and the deferred 1axes relate (o the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as parl of a business combinalion, but not satisfying the criteria for separate recognition al that dale,
are recognised subsequently if new information aboul facis and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benelfils
recognised within the measurcment period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information
obtained about facts and circumsiances existing al the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any
remaining deferred lax benefils are recognised in OCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain
purchase pains. All other acquired tax benefiis realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions and conlingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present Jegal or construclive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to scttle the obligation and the amount can be reliably eslimated.
Provisions are not recognised for fulure operaling losses.

Provisions for onerous contracls, i.e. coniracls where the expecied unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the cconomic benefits expected to be reecived under it, are recopnised when it is probable thal an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefils will be required to setile a prescnt abligation as a result of an abligating event
based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in setilement is delermined
by considering the class of obligalions as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with
respect 10 any onc item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured al the present value of management's best estimale of the expenditure required 10 settle the present
obligation al the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determing the preseni value is a pre-lax rate that
reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and (he risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due la the passage of time is recogmised as interest expense.

The disclosure of contingent liability is made when, as a result of obligating cvents, there is a possible obligalion or a
present obligation that may, but prebably will not, require an cuiflow of resources.

Contingent liabilitics recognised in a business combination
A conlingent liability rccognised in a business combination is initinlly measured at ils fair value, Subsequently, il is
measured a1 the higher ol the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or

P:,SOCMR'&F e amount inilially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
1

uirements for revenue recognition,
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ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes lo the inancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-1em, highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily converlible to known omounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafis, Bank overdrafis are shown within
borrowings in curren liabilities in the balance sheet,

2.18 Cash Nosv statement )
Cash flows arc reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/ (loss) before 1ax is edjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and eny defermals or accruals of past or future cash receipis or payments. The cash flows
from aperating, investing and financing activilics of the company are segregated. :

2.1%9 Earnings per share
The basic camings / (loss) per share is computed by dividing Lhe net profit / (loss) atiributable 10 owner's of the company
for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during reporling pedod.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings/ {loss) per sharc compriscs the weighted average shares
considercd for deriving basic earnings/ (loss) per share and also the weighted average number of cquity shares which could
have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive porential equity shares.

Dilutive potentigl equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting dale, unless they have been
issued at & later date. In computing diluted eamings per share, only potential cquity shares that are dilutive and which gither
reduces camings per share or increase toss per share are included.

2.200 Scgment reporting
Based on the "management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Chief Operaling Decision Maker
evaluales the company performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators by
reporalable segments, if any.

2.21 Contribuled equity
Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs dircctly attributable 1o the issue of new shares or options are shown
in cquity as a deduction, net of tax, frem the procecds.

3 Use ol estimates and judgements
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind ASs requires management 10 make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that afTect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounis ol assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from Lhese eslimates,

Eslimales and underlying assumptions are revicwed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounting estimales are recogniscd
in the period in which the estimares are revised and in any [uturee periods affected. However there are no significant areas of
estimalion, unceriainty and critical judgments in applying eccounting poticies that have the most significant effect on the




ALPITAGREP SECURITIES PRIVYATE LIMITED

Noles to the financial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2017

4 Property, plant and equipment

Amounl in Rs Lakhs

Particulars OfTice Furnilure and

equipment lxtures Compulers Tolal
Cost :
Balance as at 1 April 2015 7 268 276
Additions - 161 164
Deletions - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2016 7 429 440
Balance as at 1 April 2016 7 429 440
Additions 2 244 248
Deletions -
Balance as at 31 March 2017 9 673 638
Accumulated depreciation -
Balance as at | Aprl 2015 - 1 1] 67
Charge for (he year - 1 63 64
Accumulated depreciations on Disposals - - - -
Balance as a1 31 March 2016 - 2 129 131
Balance as at | April 2016 - 2 129 131
Charge for the year - 1 77 78
Balance as al 31 March 2017 - 3 206 209
Carrying amount:
Asal | April 2015 & 202 209
As a1 31 March 2016 5 300 309
Asat 31 March 2017 [ 467 479
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ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes Lo the financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2017

5 Intangible asscts
Amount in Rs Lakhs

C C v L

o

Particulars Soitware Total
Cosl :

Balance as at 1 April 20135 31 31
Balance as at 31 March 2016 3l 31
Balance as at | April 2016 k)| il
Balance a5 st 31 March 2017 31 31
Accumulated amortisalion

Balance as at | April 2015 19 19
Charge [or the year 3 5
Balance as at 31 March 2016 24 24
Balance os st | April 2016 24 24
Charge for the year 2 2
Balance as at 31 March 20417 26 26
Carrying amount:

As at | April 2015 12 12
As at 31 March 2016 7 7
As at 31 March 2017 3 5




ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

6

10

Non-carrent investments

Amount in Rs Lakhs

Particulars As at Asat As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
(i) Equily investments at cos! {[ully paid up}
- Subsidiaries:
Way2Wealth Illuminati Pic Lid 1,612 - -
(25,00,000 (PY Nil) of SGD 1 each)
1,612 - -
Agpregate amount of quoted investments and marker valuc thereof - - -
Apgrcgale amount of unquoled investmenis 1.612 - -
Appregale amount of impairment in the value of invesiments - - -
Non-current Ioans
Amount in Rs Lakhs
Particulars As at Asal Asal
31 March 20017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Unsegured, considered pood
Security deposils

- Sccurity deposits With Stock exchanges and clearing member 163 13 -
163 13 -
Other non-current financial assets

Amount in Rs Lakhs
Particulars Asat As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Fixed deposit accounts with banks - 495 -

- 495 -

Above fixed deposits with banks includes deposils provided as sccurity - 495 -

apainst credil (acilities oblained from bank

Other non-current assets

Amount in Rs Lakhs

Parliculars

Asat
31 March 2017

Asat As at
31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Capital advanccs

1 - -
Current investments
Amount in Rs Lakhs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 I April 2015
Invesrment at fair value throigh profit or loss
{i) Equity investments | 8 51
{ii) Investments in mutual funds - 1,100 1
{Refer note No. 44 for derails)
) i 1,108 52
Appregale amount of quoled invesimems and market value thereof 1 1,108 52

Agpregale amounl of unquoted investments
Appregate amount of impairment of value of investment

MM
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ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Noles o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

11

12

13

14

15

Cash and cash cquivalents

Amgunt in Rs Lakhs

Pariiculars As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Belances with banks
- in current accounts 236 3 18
Cash on hand 6 13 6
842 16 24
Bank Balances other than above
Amount in Rs Lakhs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Fixed deposit with banks 500 5 -
500 5 -
Above fixed deposits with banks includes deposils provided as securily 500 5 -
againsl credit facilitics obtained from bank
Current loans
Amount in Rs Lakhs
Particulars As at As at As al
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Unsecured, considered good
Loans lo related parties:
- Way2Wealth Secuorities Pvi Ltd - 2,200 -
- Way2wealth illuminati Pte Itd 2,203 - -
Rent Deposits 3 - -
2,211 2,200 -
Other current financial assels
Amonnt in Rs Lakhs
Particulurs As ot As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 I April 2015
Balances with stock brokers 378 937 1,434
Interest Reccivables 3 88 -
S1alT Advances 7 5 -
388 1,030 1,434
Other current assets
Amount in Rs Lakhs
Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Prcpayments 5 2 5
Balances wilh government authoritics - - 1
Other Receivable 17 34 -
22 36 6

AT

3
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ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial siztements for the year ended 31 March 2017

16

(@

()

(c)

G

{e)

Equity Sharc capital
Amouont in Rs Lakhs
{cxcept share dala)

Particulars As at Asat As al
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Authorised
1,500.000 (Previcus year: 1,500,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each 150 150 150
150 150 150
Issucd, subseribed and fully poid up
1,450,000 (Previous year; 1,250,000) equity shares of Rs, 10 each 145 125 125
145 125 125
Reconcilizlion of the number of equity shares optstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting ycar is as given below:
As al 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Noof Amount “No of shares Amount
shares
Number of shares at the beginning of Lhe year 1,250,000 125 1,250,000 125
Add: Shares issued during the year * 200,000 20 - -
Number of shares cutslanding at the end of the year 1,450,000 145 1,250,000 125

* During the Nnancial year 2016-17 the caompany has issued 200,000 equity shares of Rs_10 each at a premium of Rs, 322/~ per share.

The rights, preferences and restrictions altaching lo each class of shares including restrictions on the distribution of dividends
and the repaymeni of capilnl:

The company has only one ckass of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share, Ench holder of equily shares is entitled to one vote
per share, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing annual gencral
meeling. However, inerim dividend can be declared by he Board of Direclors subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013,
relevant rules and regulations thereunder. In the event of liquidation of the company, the cquity share holders will be entitled to receive
remaining asscts of the company, aficr distribution of all preferentinl amounts, if any. The distribulion will be in proportion 16 the number
of equity shares held by the equity shareholders.

Particulars of each class of shares held by holding, ultimate holding, subsidiarics or associates of the holding company or the
ullimate holding company
Parliculars As at Asat Asat
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 I April 2015
Way2Weallh Securities Private Limited (I{olding Company) 739,498 637,498 637,498

{Including shares held by nomince share holders)

Equity sharchelders holding more than 5% of equity shares held sl the beginning and al the end of the year is as given below:-
Name of the shareholder As at 3] March 2017 As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015
% of No of % of No of % of No of
Rolding shares holding shares halding shares
Way2Wealth Securities Private Limitled 51.00% 739498 51.00% 637,498 51.60% 637,498
(Holding Company)
Illuminati Software Private Limited 49.00% 710,500 49.00% 612,500 49.00% 612,500

(f) The company hes not reserved any shares for issue under options and conlracts or commitment for the sale of shares or disinvestments. The

company has nol issued any sccuritics convertible into equity shares.

() The company has not alloted any shares for consideration other than cash and company has nither alloted fully paid shares by way of

i
—’ S’

C

oCiA
"5‘_.

’W shares nor has boupht back shares during the period of five years immediately precceding the balance sheet date.
$
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ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Naoles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

17 Other equity
Amount in Ry Lakhs

Farliculars As at Asal Asat

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 I April 2015
2) Securities premium reserve 719 735 75
b) Relained earnings 4,005 3,175 862

<) Remeasurements of defined benefit plan 2 4 (8)
4,726 3.254 929

For delails of' movement during the year refer Stalement of Changes in Equity

Nature and purpose of other equity:

Securilies premium reserve:
Securilies premium reserve is used lo record  premium received on issue of shares in cxcess of the par value of Lhe shares. The reserve can
be utilised in accordance with the provision of scc 52 of Caompanies Act, 2013,

Retained Earnings:
Retained Eamings comprisc of the company’s accumulnied undistributed eamnings,

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan
Remeasurements of defined benel plan comprises o 'messcs ond retums on plan assel, il any, excludes interest income.
1 _‘-




ALPITAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
MNotes to the financlal atatements for the year ended 31 March 2017

19

20

21

22

23

24

Non-current provislons

Amount In Rs Lakhs
—

Particulars

As at
31 Maorch 2017

Asal Asat
31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Provision for employee benefils

- Graluity 16 14 30
(For details reler note ng,43)
36 24 30
Delerred tax Habllities (oer)
Amaunt _M_
Particulars Asal As Bt Asal

31 March 2017

31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Deferred tax Habllicy

Excess ol depreciation allowed under Tngome Tax Act, 1961 over %5 60 EL: |
depreeiation as per books
Net gain on fair valuation of equity or debt instruments - - 2
et unrealised gain on open [uture positigns - 5 5
Deferred (ax assels
Employce benefil expenses ; .
- Gratity {13) (%) (1

82 56 34
Current borrawlogs

Amount in Rs Lakhs

Panllculars As at As ot As aL

31 March 2017 3l Mnorch 2016 1 April 2015
Loan repayable oa demond
Secured:
- [rom banks
- bank overdralt
« HDFC Bank Limied ! - 192 -
Unsecured:
- Wiy2Weallh Securities Private Limiled 14 - 1
14 192 1
Bank overdrafi:
Secured agninst fixed deposil
Raie of inleresi - 0,75% over and above inlcrest or underlying Mixed deposil
Lonn tom relnted partics is payable on demand,
Rale of inleresl on unsccurcd Loan is 12.5% p.a {(P.Y.: 12.5%)
Qrher eurrent financlal liabilitles
Amount in Rs Lakhs
Panliculars As al Asal Asat
31 Morch 2017 31 March 2016 1 Aprll 2018
Accrued compensation Lo employees 1,101 1,252 KEL)
Interest accrued l - 5
Accrued expenses 21 9 2
Capilal creditors . - 38
1,123 1,261 379
Other currenl linbilitics
Amount In Ry Lakhs
Particulnrs Asat As at Asnl
31 March 2017 31 Xaorch 2016 1 April 2015
Stattory dues 74 36 19
74 36 19
Current provisions
Amouni [n Rs Lakhs
Fartlcwlars As at As ol Asat
31 March 2017 31 Morch 2016 1 April 2015

Pravisicn for employec benefils
- Grauiy
(For deails eefer nole no.43)

Current tax linbilities (Net)

Amount In Ra Lakhs

Particulars As ot Asat Asal
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Current lax assels (nel of provision) 23 270 219
23 270 219

MM
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ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes Lo the linancial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2017

25 Revenue [rom operntions

Amountin Rs Lakhs

Particulars

For the year caded
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Other operating revenue
- Trading income - securitics

14,127

14,778

14,127

14,778

26 Other income

Amount in Rs Lakhs

Particulars For the year coded For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Inlerest income 315 122
Dividend income 73 12
388 134
27 STT, CTT and Stock exchanges Expenses
Amounl in Rs Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year cnded
31 March 2016

Sccurnities and Commodities Transaction Tax 6,716 6,105
Transaclion charges 1,867 2,022
Bandwidth charges 135 14
Brokerage & Other Charges 584 193

9302 8,34

28 Employee benelits expense

Amounl in Rs Lakhs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Salaries and wages 3316 2,646
Contribution to provident and other funds 46 31
Graluily 13 13
Stafl wellare expenses 21 41
3,396 2,731
2% Finance costs
Amount in Rs Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

[nlerest expense
- loans from related party
- Others

77

78




ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial siatements for the year ended 31 March 2017

30 Dcprecintion and amor(ization expense
Amount in Rs Lakhs

Particulars For the year coded For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Deprecialion on property, plant & equipment (refer note 4) 78 &4
Amortization ol intangible assets (reler note 5) 2 5
30 69

31 Other expenses
Amount in Rs Lakhs
Parliculars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Rent 23 6
Power and fucl 1 -
Recruitment charges 29 53
Lepnl, professional and consultancy 29 40
Raoes and taxes 3 2
Membership and subscription 23 21
Communication expenses [ 2
Auditor's remuneralion 5 6
Travelling and conveyance 134 78
Provision [or loss on open fulure position - 2
Repairs and maintenance
- others 25 3
Insurance q 2
Balances Wriiten O - 1
Corporale social responsibility expendilure a5 6
Forex Loss g1 -
Miscellaneous cxpenses 1 -
409 222

M
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Alphagep Sceurities Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

32 Income tax

(a) Blajor components of income tax cxpense for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016:

(b)

{c)

®
(d)

Amount in Rs Lakhs

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Current income (ax:

Current income tax charge 394 1,212
Adjusiments in respect of current income tax of previous year {1} 11
393 1,223
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary dillerences 27 L5
Increase/ reduction of tax rate - ]
27 16
Income iax expense reported in the stntement of profit or loss 420 1.239

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during in the year:

Amaupnt in Rs Lakhs

Particulars For the year ended  For the year cnded
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Remeasurements of defined benefit plan actuarial gains/ (losses) ()] 7

Income tax charged to OCI 4] 7

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplicd by India’s domestic tax rate:

Amoaunt in Rs Lakhs

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Profit/ (loss) before tax lrom conlinuing operations 1,250 3,552

Indian tox rate 34.61% 34.61%

Tax at the Indian (ax rate 433 1,229

Eflcct of:

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes:

- Other non-deductible items 14 2
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years (1} 11
Tax exempt income (26) 1)
Change in rate of 1ax . 1
Others - -
Income Iax cxpense 420 1,239

Amounis of current and defTered tax direcily recognised in equily is Rs,Nil (PY: Rs.Nil)

Uncertain tax position




ALPHAGREP SECURITILES PRIVATE LIMITED
Noles 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

33 Contingenl liabilities, commitments and coolingent assets
Amount in Rs Lakhs
Particulars As at Asal Asal
31 Merch 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Contingent linhilities:
Claims against the company nol acknowlcdged as debt - - -

Guaranlees excluding financinl guaranices - - -
Other money for which the company is contingently liable - - -
Commitments:

Eslimated amount of contracls remaining te be exccuted on capital - - 5

account {nel of advances) and not provided for

34  Auditor's remuncralion

Amount in Rs Lakhs

I"articulars As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

As nuditor
- for statutory audit 3 3
- for 1axntion matiers |
- for other services - 1
Reimbursement of expenses {Including Service tax ) - |
5 6

35 The details of Specified Bank Notes (SBNs) and other denomination notes held and transacied, by the company, during Lhe
pericd 8th November, 2016 10 30th December, 2016 is as follows, in terms of MCA notification G,5.R.308(E) dated 30th

March, 2017.
Amount in Rs Lakhs
Particulars Other
SBNs* denomination ‘I'atal
notes
Closing cash in hand on 8th November, 2016 16 - &

(+) Permitied receipts - - -
(-} Permitted paymemis - - -
(-} Amoun deposited in Banks 16 - 16

Closing cash in hand on 30th December, 2016 - - -

* For the above purpose, the term *Specified Bank Notes' shall have the some meaning provided in the notification of the
Govemmenl of Ind:a, in the Ministry of Finance, Depariment of Economic AlfTairs number 5.0. 3407(E}, dated 8ih Novemaber,
20167

36 Corporate social responsibilily expenditure
Amounl in Rs Lakhs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Murch 2017 31 March 2016

Amaount required to be spent as per Sec 135 of the Acl 3z - 9

Amaun spent during the year on;

{i) Construclion/acguisition of an asset - - -

{11} On purposes other Uian (i) above 35 - 6

¢ company has spent Rs.3 Lakhs during the year in respeet of unspent amount of FY 2015-16.
hcﬁo Ci4 1y ra §
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ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

37
)

(i)

(iii}

38

39

40

41

Earnings per share (EPS)
Reconcilialion of earnings used in calculating earnings per share:
Amount in'm Lakhs
{except share data}
Particulars ¥Year ended Year coded
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Proflit/ {loss) afler taxation as per siatement ol profit and loss {for 830 2313
basic EPS)
Less: Eflect ol dilulive potential ordinary shares - -
Nel profit/ (loss) for diluted earnings per share 830 2,313
Reconciliation of basic and diluted sheres nsed in compuoting earnings per share —
Particulors Year cnded Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Number of weighted average equity shares considered 1,250,548 1,250,000
for calculation of basic camings per share
Add ; Dilutive effect of potential ordinary shores - -
Number of weighted average cquity sharcs considered
for calculation of diluted carnings per share 1,250,548 1,250,000
Earnings per share:
- Basic (Rs.) 66.33 185.03
- Diluled (Rs)) ) 66.18 185.03

Leases

Opcrating lease

Asscts taken an cancellable operating Icase

The Company is obligaled under cancellable lease for office premises. Total lense rental expenses recognised in the
statemenl of profil and loss for the year are as follows:

Amount in Rs Lakhs

Parliculars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Cancellable 23 6
23 6

Segment informalion

The company is aperating in financial service scclor in [ndia. Thus, there arc no reporiable scgments as deflined in Ind AS 108
"Operating Segments”. The company eams ils entire "revenue from external customers” in India, being company's country of
damigile. All non-current msscis ather than finangial instruments and deferred (ax assets, are located in India. There are no
single major customers on whom the company's revenue is dependent upon and revenuc from none of the sinple cusiomer is
more than or equal o 10% of the company's revenues.

Balance confirmaiion

Confirmation of receivables and payable balances have not been received by the Company, hence, reliance is placed on Lhe
balances os per books. In the opinion of the management, the amounis are realisable/ payable in the ordinary course of
busincss.

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises .
The Company hos no dues 1o Micro and Small Enterprises based on information received and available with the Company.

Myn




ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements [or the year ended 31 March 2017

42 Related parly transactions

A. Enterprises where conirol exisis

Ullimate Holding Company

M/s. CofTeeday Enterprises Limited {previously known as Colfeeday Resorts Private Limited)

Intermedijate Haldin mpan
Tanglin Developments Limited

Holdin: Mmpan
M{s Way2Wealth Securities Private Limited

Substdiaries;

Way2Wealth llluminati Pt Ltd (w.c.f. 27 March 2017)

Stepdown Subsidiaries;

Alphagrep Holding HK Ltd. {w.c.f 27 March 2017)

Alphagrep UK Lad. (w.c.f 27 Mnorch 2017)
Shanghai Dao GE Intemational Trading *

= Shanghai Dao GE Intermnational Trading is incorporated w.e,l 13 February 2017. However procedure for issue and
subscription of shares is under process and there is no issued share capital in the company as at 31 March 2017.

B. Key management personnel and their relatives

Mr. Mohit Murreja
Mr, B.G, Srinath
Mr, Parshant Miltal
Mr. Gentil P Augusline
C.Other related partics
M/s. Way2Weallh Commodities Privale Limiled
M/s.Woy2Wealth Brokers Private Limiled

D. The following is a summary of related party transactions.

Amoont in Rs Lakhs

Parriculars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Capital transactions
Loan received during the year
M/s Way2Wealth Securities Private Limited 1,401 2,027
Loan recoverd during the year
M/s Way2Wealth Sccurilics Private Limited 2,532 -
Loan repaid during the year
M/s Way2Wealth Securities Private Limited 1,393 2,036
Loan advanced during the year
M/s WayZWealth Sccuritics Private Limited - 2,200
M/s Way2Wealth Wluminali PTE Loan 2,294 -
Revenue iransaclions
Reimbursement of expenses paid
M/s Way2Wealth Securities Privatc Limited 3 3
M/s Way2Wealth Commodities Private Limited 72 45
Brokerage paid
M/s Way2Wealth Brokers Privale Limited 6 5
M/s Way2Wealth Commodilics Privite Limited 6 5
Bandwidth charges paid
M/s Way2Wealth Brokers Privale Limited 90 -
M/s Way2Wealth Commodilics Privete Limited 10 -
Interest income
274 9

M/s Way2Wealth Securitics Private Limited
M/s Way2Wealth llluminati PTE Loan
Interest expenses
's Way2Wealth Securities Private Limiled
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ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for (he year ended 31 March 2017

43

E. The following Is 2 summary of balanrces receivable from and payable to related parties:

Amount in Rs Lakhs

Particulars As at As at As Bt

11 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Balonces with gther releted partics - {Receivable) / Poyable;
M/{s. Way2Wealth Brokers Privale Limited {202) (748) {754)
M/s. Way2Wealth Commoditics Privale Limiled {176) (175) (6%0)
M/s Way2Wealth Securities Private Limited 14 (2,285) &
M/s Way2Wealth [lluminoie Pte Limited (2.204) - -

* The amount includes transactions involved in the course of wading in shares and securilies, if any, Such transaclions ar
being being entered by respeclive brokers as an agenl with Exchange and hence not disclosed os revenue transactlions during
the period. However, closing balance includes dues of trading activilics.

Loan payment includes inlerest paymness, if any.

F. Compensation of key management personnct of the Company:

Amount in Rs Lakhs

Particulars Far the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Shont-term employee benefits 152 138
Posl-employment benefits * - .

152 138

* The above remuncralion excludes gratuity which cannol be separately identified from the composite amount advised by the
actuary. Reimbursement of cxpenses incurred by the Key Managerial Personnel are not considered for the above purpose.

Gratuity plan
Defincd benefit plan
The following table scis out the delails of gratuity plen s required under Ind AS 19 ‘Employee bencfils'

Reconciliation of the projecied benelit obligations
Amount in Rs Lekhs

Particulars As at As al
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Change in projected benefit obligation:
Otfigations et the beginning of the year 25 31
Included in profit and loss;
- Service cost 11 10
- Interest cost 2 3

Included in other comprehensive income;

- Remeasurement (gains)/ losses in other comprebensive income:

- Actuarial (gains)/ losses arising from changes in demographic assumptic - -

- Acluarial (gains)/ losses orising from changes in financial assumptions 3 (13

- Acluarial (gains) losses orising from experience adjustments (1) {19)
Benclits setlled (3} -
Obligations at year end 37 4

Change in plan assels:
Plans assets at the beginning of (he year, at fair value - -

Changes during the yeor - -
Plans asscts at year end, at fair value - -
Liability recognised in the balance sheet

- Current | |
- Nom-current 36 24

Reconcilintion of preseat value of obligation and Inir value of plan assets:
Amopunt in Rs Lakhs

Particulars For the ycar coded For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Fair value of plan asscls - -
Present value of defined benefit obligation et the end of the year 37 23
Liability recognised in the balance shept? pS30CiTm, ¥ 15

M



ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to (he financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Amounl in Rs Lakhs

- For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2017

For the ycar ended
31 March 2016

Gratuity cost for the year
Included in profit and loss;

- Service cost 11 10
- Interest cosl 2 3
Included in other comprehensive income:
- Remeasurement (gains)/ losses in other comprehensive income:;
- Actuarial {gainz)/ losses arising from changes in demographic assumplions
- Actuarial (pains)/ losses arising from changes in linancial assumptions 3 [{}]
- Actuarial {paing)/ losses arising from expericnce adjustmenils (n (1%
Benefits seltled (3 -
Net gratuity cost 12 {7}
Assumpltians
[nterest rate 732%p.a 813% pa
Expected rate of retum on plan assets NA NA
Salary increase 6% pa. 6% p.n.
Altrition rate 5% p.a. §% p.n.
Montalily iable .
. indion
. Indian assured assured lives
lives {2906-2008) (2006-2008)
Ullimale \
Ultimate

—_—
The estimates of future salary increases, considercd in acwarial valualion, takes inlo sccounl inflation, seniority, promation and

other relevant factors such as supply and demand (rctors in the employmenl market.

‘The company provides for gratuity for employees in India ns per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in
comtinuous service for 4 period of 5 years are eligible for gratity. The amount of gratuily payable on retirement/termination is
1he employces last drawn basic salary per month computed propottionalely for 15 days salary multiplied for the number ol years

of service.

Sensilivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date (o one of the relevant sctuarial assumplions, helding other assumplions

constant, would have afTected the defined benefit obligation by (he amounts shown below.

Amount in Rs Lakhs

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Increase Decrcase  Increase  Decrease
Discount rate (+/ - 100 basis poinls) 33 42 22 27
Future salary growth (+ / - 100 basis points) 40 3 27 22
Attritton rate (+ / - 100 basis points) ’ 37 37 25 24
Future moriality {10% up) 37 NA 23 NA

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribumion of cash [lows expecied under the plan, it does provide an

ximalion of the sensitivity of the assumplions shovwn.
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ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes (o the financial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2017

44  Financial ins(ruments - fair value measurement

{a) Accounting classification and [air value

Balance sheet disclosures Amount in Rs Lakhs
Pariliculars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016 As at 1 April 2015
Carrying Fairvalue Carrying Fairvalue Carrying  Fair value
value value value

Financial assels:

Fair value through prafir and loss:

- Equity Investments
Tata Communications Limited - - . - - -
Siemens Lid - - 3 3 - .
Tata Global Beverages Limited . - - - - -
Sarda Energy & Minerals Limited - - - - - -
Tata Sponge Iron Limited - - - - - -
“I'ata Melaliks Limitcd - - - . - .
Welspun India Limited - - 2 2 . -
Aurobindo Pharma Limiled - - . - - -
Venus Remedies Limiled - - - - - -
Sanghvi Movers Limited - . - - - -
Zydus Wellness Limited - - - . - -
Tamil Nadu Newsprint & Papers Lid. - - - - - -
Vaibhav Global Limited - - . - - -
TVYS Molor Company Limited - . - . - .
Sasken Technologics Limited - - - - . -
Gujarat State Petronel Limited - - . - - -
TV 18 Broadcast Limited - - - - - .
Page Industrics Limitcd - - - - - -
Talwalkars Better Value Fitness Limited - - | 1 - -
Tree House Education & Accessories Limited - - - - - -
Texmo Pipes and Products Limited - . - . - -
Gujarat Apollo Industrics Limited - - - - - -
Repro India Limited . - - - . -
J Kumar [nfraprojects Limited - - - - - -
Kemrock Industries and Expons Limiled - - - - - -
BLS International Services Limited 1 1 - - - -
KSK Encrgy Ventures Limited - - - - . -
Sterlite Power Transmisston Limited 1 1 . - - -
Lakshmi Vilas Bank Limited - - - - 51 51

- Mutual funds
Goldman Sachs Liquidbees - - %00 900 - -
BirlaSun Life Liquid fund - - 200 200 - .
IIFL Mutual fund - . - . - -
Motilal Ostwal MF - - - - - -
Motilal Oswal Murtutal fund - Gold - - - - . -
- - 1,100 1,100 - -

Measured ar amortised cost:

Cash and cash equivalents 841
Bank balances other than above 500
Loans 2211 2,200
Other current financial assets 388 1,030 1,434 *

18
5

25 *

* &+ * ¥
* ¥ * B
*

3,940 3,253 1,459

Total 3,942 2 4,359 1,106 1,510 51

Financial liabilities:

Measured at amoriised cose:

Current borrowings 14 - 192 - 1 *
Other inancial liabilitics 1,123 - 1,261 . 379 *

Total 1,137 1,453 380

-

loans, shorl term borrowings. other current financial
ifies of (hese instraments.

The management asscssed that that the fair value of cash and cash cqui
assets and liabilitics approximate their carrying amounts largely duc to

MmN



ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the linancial statements [or (ke year ended 31 March 2017

(b)

Statement of profit and loss Amount in Rs Lakhs

Pariiculars

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2016

Net gains/ (losses) on -

4,825

6,443

- Financial assels measured at fair value through profil and loss

Interest revenue/ (expense) on -
- Financial asscis measurcd at amertised cosl
- Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Dividend income on -
- Financinl asscis measurcd at [air value through profit and [oss

315
-5

73

122
4

12

Fair value hicrarchy

The section explains the judgement and estimales made in determining the fair values of the financial instraments that arc

a) recognised and measured at loir valuc

b} measurcd at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the [inancial stalements.
To provide an indication about the reliability of the inpuls used in determining [lair value, the management has classilied its financial instruments
into the three levels preseribed under the accounting slandard. An explanation of cach level fallows undemeath the table

Amount in Bs Lakhs

Financial pssets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair Noles Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Toial

As 21 31 March 2017

Financial assets:

Fair value through profit and foss:

Equily Instrument 10 2 - - 2

Invesmenl in mutwal funds 10 - - - -

Tatal Financial assets 2 - - 2
Amount in Rs Lakhs

Financial assels and ligbilities measured at fair value - recurring fair Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Talal

As at 31 March 2016

Financial asseis:

Fair value through profit and loss:

Equity Instrument 10 6 - - 6

Invesiment in mutval funds 10 1,100 - - 1,100

Total Financial assels 1,106 - - 1,106
Amount in Rs Lakhs

Financial assets and liabilitics measured al fair value - recurring fair Noles Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Totat

Asat I April 2015

Financial assets:

Fair valie through profir and loss:

Equity Instrument 10 51 - - 51

Invesment in mutual {funds 10 - - - -

Total Financial nssels 51 - - 51

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using qualed prices, This includes lisled equity instruments, traded bonds and
mulual funds thal have quated price, The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued
using the closing price as et the reporting period. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair valuc of financial instruments that are not raded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives} is
determined using veluation rechniques which maximise the use of observable markel data and rely as litde as possible on entily-specilic estimales.
I1 alt significant inpuls required to fair value an insirument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: [F one or more of the signilicant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for
unlisted equity securities included in level 3

Valuation technique used to determine fair value ]
The fair vatuc of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount a1 which the instrument could be exchanged in a curremt transaction
between willing pasties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The [ollowing methods and assumplions were used to estimaic the fair values

AN
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ALPITAGRED SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Noles to (he financial statements for the year cnded 31 March 2017

(d)

45

()

(b)

()

Valuation processes
The finance depariment of the company performs the valeations of financial assels and liabilities required for financial Tcporiing purposcs,
including level 3 [air values. The department reports direclly to the group chicf financial ofTtcer (CFQ) and the audit committee (AC).

Financial instrumenis - risk management
The company’s aclivities expose il 1o market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.

Risk management [ramework

The Company's hoard of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company's risk manegement [mmework.
The company’s risk management policies arc established to identily and analyse the risks faced by the company, 10 scl oppropriate risk limiis and
controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management policics and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in markel
conditions and the company’s aclivities, The management, through ils training and management standards and procedures, aims 1o maintain a
disciplined and canstructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligatiens.

Board oversces how menagement monilors complinnce with the company’s risk management policics and procedures, and reviews the adequacy
of the risk mansgement [rameswork in relation 1o the risks faced by the company,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 10 the company if & customer or counterparty 1o a financial instrument fails 10 meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the company's receivables from customers and investments in debt securitics.

The camrying amount of financial assels represents the maximum credil exposure,

The company's exposure 1o credil risk is only through the lollowing financial assets -

1, Balance with share brakers - The amount kepl with the securities brokers who are regulnted by SEBY, is in the naturc of margin required for the
company's exposurc in (he securilies markel as on (he reporting date. The same will be scttled on the sertlement date mandatorily by the securities'
broker. Therefore, the credit risk invloved is negligent due 16 the short werm nature and regulaled by SEBL

2. Short term loan to group companics - The credit risk on the short term loan is negiligent, based on the previous performance of group
COMpAnIes.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will encounter difficully in meeling the obligations associated with its [inancial liabilities that are selled
by delivering cash or another financial asset. The management's approach (o managing liquidity is (o ensure, as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal end stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses o
risking damage to the company's reputation,

Management monitors ralling forecasts of the company’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below) and cash and cash
cquivalents on the hasis of expecled cash flows, This is generally carried out in sccordance with practice and limits se1 by the company.,

i) Financing arrangemenl
The company had access 10 the following undrawn berrowing facilities at the end of 1he reporting, period:
Amount in Rs Lakhs

Particulars As at As at Asat
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015

Fixed rate:
- Expiring wilhin one year (bank overdraft) 500 308 -

ii) Maturities of financial liabilities
The following arc the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilitics ar the reporing date. The amounts ore: gross and undiscounted

comtractual cash flow, and include contractual interest payments and exclude the impect of netting agreements.
Amount in Rs Lakhs

As at 31 March 2017 Carrying Repayable 2 months 2-12 months 1-2years 2-5years Morethan$
amount ondemand  orless years

Non-derivalive linancial liabilitics

Loan (rom related partics 14 14 - - - - -
Other current financial liabilities 1,123 - 83 1,040 - - -
1,137 14 83 1,040 - - -

Amount in Rs Lakhs

Carrying Repayable 2 months More than 5
As at 31 March 2016 amount on demand orless 2—12 months 1-2vears 2-5 years YEUrS

Non-derivative finnncial liabilities

Bank overdralls 192 192 - - - - -
Other current financial liabilities 1,261 - peS0CH 1,200 - - -

1,453 I %r‘:/ E‘R‘q{:x 1,200 - - -
wl




ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

@

Amount in Bs Lakhs

Carrying Repayable 2 months More than 5
As at 1 April 2015 amouni on demand  orless  2-12 mgnths  1-2 years  2-5 vears Years
Non-devivative financial liabilitics
Loan from related parties 1 1 - - - - -
QOther current financial liabilities 79 - 49 330 - - -
380 1 49 330 - - -
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that chonges in markel prices, such as foreipn exchange rates, interesl rales and equity prices, which will aflect the
company's income or the value of i1s holdings of financinl instruments. The abjective of market risk management is 10 manage and contro) market
risk exposures within acceptable pammeters, while oplimising the return,

i) Currcocy risk
The company is exposed o currency risk to the exient thar. there is a mismalch between the currencies in which loans and advances are
denominated and the respective funcrional currencics of the counler party. The reporting currency of the counler party is USD.

Exposure to currency risk
The summary quantitalive data about the company’s exposure Lo currency risk is as follows:

Asal 1 April
Particulars As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016 2015
USD USD UsDh

Fingncial asscts
Loans 35 - -
Other fMinancial assets - - -
Net statlement of financial position

_ exposure 35 - -
The followmng signiltcant exchange rates have been applied

Year end spot rates

INR 31 March 2017 31 March 2016 I April 2015
usD 1 63.85 66.33 62,59

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible strengthening {weakening) of the US dollar apainsl all other currencies at 31 March would have alfected the measurement
of [inancial instruments denominated in a foreign currency and affected cquity and profit or loss by the nmounts shown below. This annlysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rales, remain constant.

Impact on profit or loss Impacl on other
Particulars components of equity
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2015
USD sensitivity
INRY USD - Increase by 1% 035 - - -
INR/ USD - Decrease by 1% 0.35) - - -

ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucluele because of changes in market inferest
rales. The company has exposure only 1o financial instruments at {ixed interest rates. Hence, the company is nat exposed Lo significant interest rale
risk.

iii) Price risk

The company's exposure 16 equity securilics price risk ariscs [rom invesiments held by the company and classilted in the balance sheel at [air
value through profit or loss.

The majority of the company's equily and mutual fund investments are publicly raded.

Sensitivity analysis — price risk
The table below summariscs the impact of increase/decrease of the market price of the listed instruments on the company's equity and profit for
the period. The analysis is based on the assumption thet the market price hod increased by 2% or decreascd by 2%.

Impacl on profit or loss Impact on other
Particulars componcots of equity
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2017 2016 2017 2016
el price increases by 2% 0.04 22 - -
el price decreases by 2% (0.04) {22) - -
T T—
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ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Noles to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

46  Capilal management
‘The Company's objective is lo maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximize shareholder value.

Amouni in Rs.
Particulars Asat As at Asal
31 March 31 March 1April 2015
2017 2016
Non current borrowings - - -
Current borrowings 14 192 1
Debi 14 192 1
As percenlage of lotal capital 0% 5% 0%
Equity 4,871 33719 1,054
As percentape ol total capilal 100% 95% 100%
! 4,885 3,571 1,055

Total capital (debt and equity)
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ALTIIAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Noles to the linancial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2017

47

(m)

ii)

(b

First lime adoption

The company has adopted the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) during the year and accordingly these are the company's first
financial stalements prepared in accordnace with Ind AS.

As per the Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, first time adopler shall prepare and present an opening
Ind AS Balance Sheet at the date of transition to Ind ASs. This is the starting point for accounting in accordance with Ind AS. The
datc of transition for the company is | April 2015.

The accounting policies set oul in Note No.2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2017, the comparitive information presented in these financial stalemenis for the year ended 31 March 2016 and in tke preparation
of opening Ind AS balance sheet at 1 April 2015, the dale of transition. In preparing ils comparitive financial statements including
opening balance sheet, the company has adjusicd the amounts reporied previously in financial statcments prepared in accordance
with the Previous GAAP. An explnation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has alTected the company's
{inancial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out below.

Mandatory exceplions availed;
Ind AS 101 also allows [irst-time adopters cerlain mandatory exceptions te be applicd For relrospective application of certain
requirements under Ind AS for trunsition from the Previcus GAAP:

Classification and measurement of lnancial assets

Ind AS 101 require an entily to classify and measure its financial asset into amortised cost, fair value through OCI or fair value
through profit or loss based on the business madel asscssment or and Solely payment of principal and interest (SPPT) criterion
based on facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition,

Estimates

Ind AS 101 prohibils the use of hindsight to correct estimates made under previous GAAP unless there is objective evidence of
error. It only allows to adjust the cstimates made under previous GAAP when the basis of caleulation does not comply with Ind
AS.

Upon an essessment of the estimates made under Previous GAAP, the Company has concluded that there was no necessily to
revise such cstimates under Ind AS, other than those required due to application of Ind AS.

Reconciliation behween previous GAAP and Ind AS:

Reconciliation of equity:
Amount in Rs Lakhs

Particulars Notes to first- Asat As at
. lime 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Tatal cquity as per previous GAAP : 3,370 1,039
Adjusiments:
Fair valuc adjustments on invcstments i} - 5
Unrcalised gains on open position ii) 13 17
Delemed tax jii) [C)] ]
Total adjustments g 15

as per Ind AS 3,379 1,054

.
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ALPIIAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

ii)

iii)

i)

Reconciliation of total comprehensive income:
Amount in Rs Lakhs

Particulars Notes lo [lirst- For the ycar ended
time adoption 31 March 2016
Profit after tax (PAT) as per previous GAAP 2,331
Adjustments:
Fair valuc adjusiments on investments at FVTPL i) (3)
Unrealised gains on open posifion i) &)
Deferred tax iili) 9
Remeasurement of delined benefit plan classified 10 OCl iv) (19
Total adjustments (18}
Profit afier lax as per Ind AS 2313
Other comprehensive income (OCT)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan iv) 19
Deflerred t1ax iit) ¥)]
Tolal comprehensive income 2,325

Adjusiments to the statement of cash flows:

Ampount in Rs Lakhs

Particulars Notes to For the year ended 31 March 2016

first-time Previous Adjustment Ind AS

adoption GAAP
Net cash flow from opereting activities v} 2,628 - 2,628
Net cash flow from investing activitics v) (2,818} - (2,818)
Net cash flow from financing aclivities ¥) 182 (192) (10)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (8) (192) {200
Cash and cash equivalenis as at | April 2015 24 ) 2
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2016 16 (192) (176}

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified (o conform with Ind AS.

Notes to first ime adeplion

Investments

Under the Previcus GAAP, equity invesiments and mutual funds werc classified as non current and current invesiments based on
the intended holding period and realisability. Non current investments are carricd at cos. Provision for dimiunution in valoe of
non current investments is made in case the decline in the value is nol temporary in naturc. Current investments are staled at lower
of cost or fair value.

Under Ind AS investments are valued at fair value. The resulting fair value changes in Invesiments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income, have been recognised in FVTOCI - Investment reserve as at the transition date and subscquently in
the other comprehensive income, The resulting fair value changes in Investmenis measured al fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL), have been recognised in refained earnings as at the transilion dale and subscquently in the profit or Tnss.

Derivatives
Under the Previous GAAP unrealised income on derivative insintements was not recogniscd in (he profit or loss. Under Ind AS
derivaties arc measured at fair value and the fair valuc chang ofit or [oss is recognised in profit or loss.




ALPHAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

i)

iv)

Deferred tax

Under the Previous GAAP delerred 1ax asset in respect of carryforward of unsed 1ax losscss and unused 1ax crediis was recognised
on viriual certainily of recoverability of the same. Under Ind AS deferred tax asset in respect of carryforward of unused 1ax losses
and unused tax credits is recognised 10 the exient that il is probable that future 1axable profit will be available against which the
unused fax losses and unuscd tex credits can be utilised. Adoption of Ind AS has resulied in change in recognilion and
measurement of assels and liabilities, giving rise to originalion or reversal of temporary differcnces, accordingly deferred tax is
recognised in respect of those changes, wherever applicable. Certain itlems ol income and expenses are reclassified from profit and
loss 1o other comprehensive income, accordingly the related deferred tax expense / income has been reclassifed from profit and
loss 1o other comprehensive income.

Remeasurement ol posl-employmenl benelil expenses

Under Ind AS remeasurement i.¢. acturial gains and losses andl the return on plan assets, i any, excluding amount included in the
net interest expenses on the net defined benefit linbility arc recognised in other comprhensive income instead of profit ar loss.
Under the Previous GAAP these remeasurements were formaing part of profit or loss for the year,

Cash and cash cquivalents

Under Ind AS, bank overdrafis which are repayable on demand and forming an inlegral part of an entity's cash management arc
included es a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement. However [or presentaion purposes
bank overdrafis are shown within borrowings in currcni liabilitics in the balance shect.

Under Previous GAAP bank overdrafs were shown as parl of financing activities and not considered as cash and cash cquivalents.

As per our report of even date attached

For SUNDARESHA & ASSOCIATES For and on behalf of the Board of Directars of
: ALPIIAGREP SECURITIES PRIVATE LEEETED
MOILIT MUTREJA ATH
Managing Director Director
DIN: 02666013 DIN: 01901681
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Dare: 10 May 2017 Date: 10 May 2017
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